
[image: image1.jpg]) SIC PERMANET

| _rocus | 4
Ontario

VT INCEPIT

2\




ONTARIO

ENERGY

BOARD

	FILE NO.:
	EB‑2006‑0501
	

	VOLUME:

DATE:

BEFORE:
	Issues Day

December 14, 2006

Pamela Nowina

Paul Sommerville

Bill Rupert


	Presiding Member

Member

Member




EB-2006-0501

THE ONTARIO ENERGY BOARD

IN THE MATTER OF the Ontario Energy Board Act 1998, S.O.1998, c.15, (Schedule B); 

AND IN THE MATTER OF an Application by Hydro One Networks Inc. for an Order or Orders approving or fixing just and reasonable rates and other charges for the transmission of electricity commencing January 1, 2007. 

Hearing held at 2300 Yonge Street, 5th Floor, 

Toronto, Ontario, on Thursday,

December 14, 2006, commencing at 9:34 a.m.

----------
Issues Day

----------

B E F O R E:

PAMELA NOWINA


PRESIDING MEMBER

PAUL SOMMERVILLE

MEMBER

BILL RUPERT


MEMBER

A P P E A R A N C E S

DONNA CAMPBELL


Board Counsel

JENNIFER LEA



Board Staff

HAROLD THIESSEN

WADE FROST

DUNCAN SKINNER

CHRIS CINCAR





NABIH MIKHAIL

MARTIN DAVIES 

DONALD ROGERS


Hydro One Networks Inc.

JOE TONEGUZZO

MARK RODGER



Association of Major Power

ADAM WHITE



Consumers of Ontario

WAYNE CLARK

ROBERT WARREN


Consumers Council of Canada

JOHN DeVELLIS


School Energy Coalition

MICHAEL BUONAGURO


Vulnerable Energy Consumers






Coalition

RICHARD LONG




Society of Energy







Professionals

JOSEPHINA ERZETIC


Ontario Power Generation

TONY PETRELLA

DAVID SHORT




IESO

RICHARD STEPHENSON


Power Workers’ Union

DAVID MacINTOSH


Energy Probe

TOM ADAMS

I N D E X   O F   P R O C E E D I N G S

Description







Page No.

--- Upon commencing at 9:34 a.m.




1

Appearances 








1

Submissions by Mr. Rodgers





4

Submissions by Ms. Campbell





12

Submissions by Ms. Lea






17

Submissions by Ms. Campbell





21

Submissions by Mr. Rodger





23

Submissions by Mr. DeVellis





26

Submissions by Mr. Warren





28

Submissions by Mr. Stephenson





29

Submissions by Mr. Buonaguro





30

--- Recess taken at 10:23 a.m.




33

--- On resuming at 10:41 a.m.





33

Decision









33

--- Whereupon the hearing adjourned at 10:43 a.m.

34
E X H I B I T S

Description







Page No.

EXHIBIT NO. A:  PROPOSED ISSUES LIST



7

EXHIBIT NO. B:  SCHEDULE 1





7

U N D E R T A K I N G S

Description







Page No.

No undertakings were entered during this hearing

     Thursday, December 14, 2006

     --- Upon commencing at 9:34 a.m.


MS. NOWINA:  Good morning, everyone.  Please be seated.  Can everyone hear me this morning?  Good.  

The Board is sitting today in the matter of application EB-2006‑0501 submitted by Hydro One Networks for an order or orders fixing rates and other charges for the transmission of electricity commencing January 1st, 2007.


An Issues Conference involving the company, intervenors, and Board Staff was held on December 7th and 8th to clarify issues and to identify proposed modifications and additions to the issues list.


We understand that although you have almost complete settlement on the issues list, it is not completely settled, and so we will sit today to hear submissions on the issues and to consider if the proposed issues list is appropriate.


My name is Pamela Nowina.  I will be the Presiding Member in this proceeding, and joining me on the panel are members Paul Sommerville and Bill Rupert.


May I have appearances, please.


APPEARANCES:

MR. ROGERS:  Good morning, Ms. Nowina.  My name is Donald Rogers.  I'm counsel to the applicant, and with me is Mr. Joe Toneguzzo, who is director of major applications.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Rogers.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Donna Campbell on behalf of Board Staff, accompanied by Jennifer Lea, Harold Thiessen, Wade Frost, Chris Cincar, Nabih Mikhail, and Martin Davies.


MS. NOWINA:  People are probably grateful that we only have two rows for you.  

Others?  Mr. Buonaguro?


MR. BUONAGURO:  Michael Buonaguro, counsel for VECC.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.


MR. DeVELLIS:  Good morning, Panel.  John DeVellis for School Energy Coalition.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. DeVellis.


MR. RODGER:  Good morning.  Mark Rodger, counsel to the Association of Major Power Consumers of Ontario, and with me is Mr. Adam S. White, the AMPCO president, and Wayne Clark, AMPCO's consultant.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Rodger.


MR. LONG:  Richard Long, Society of Energy Professionals.


MR. WARREN:  Robert Warren for the Consumers Council of Canada.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Warren.


MR. STEPHENSON:  Richard Stephenson.  I'm counsel for Power Workers' Union.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Stephenson.


MS. ERZETIC:  Good morning, Josephina Erzetic, representing Ontario Power Generation.


MS. NOWINA:  You need to press the green button, ma'am, in order for it to be recorded.


MS. ERZETIC:  Josephina Erzetic, E-R-Z-E-T-I-C, counsel for Ontario Power Generation, and with me is Mr. Tony Petrella from Regulatory Affairs.  Thank you.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.


MR. SHORT:  I'm David Short from the IESO.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Short.


MR. MACINTOSH:  David MacIntosh from Energy Probe, and I want to put in an appearance from Tom Adams, as well.  Thank you.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. MacIntosh.  

Is that everyone?  I would suggest that for those of you who are going to speak, there are empty seats in the front where you have access to the microphones.  So when you speak, you may want to move forward.


Do we have any preliminary matters for the Panel's consideration this morning?


MS. CAMPBELL:  Not that I am aware of.


MS. NOWINA:  All right.  Thank you.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Not that I am aware of.  What we do have is a proposed issues list, and I believe that Mr. Rogers, on behalf of the applicant, would speak to it first.  

Everybody should have a copy of the proposed issues list.  It was sent last night.  If you want a hard copy, there is a hard copy of it and the second attachment, which was called schedule 1 in my e‑mail, also sitting beside Mr. Frost at the back.  


MS. NOWINA:  All right.  So, Mr. Rogers, you are going to introduce the issues list and make your submissions?


SUBMISSIONS BY MR. ROGERS:

MR. ROGERS:  Yes, and I'll be very brief.  I'll tell the Board what I told the parties who were at the conference the other day, and that is this:  That the applicant understands that it has not been before the Board for a long time on transmission costs, and we understand that it's important that all of these costs be looked at.


It's therefore very difficult for me to argue that any issue is not relevant to that determination, and I can't argue that any issue, by means of a lack of relevance, should not be on the issues list.


My client believes the issues list, as presently framed, is too broad, frankly, but we understand the reason for it at this stage of the proceedings, and we pretty well agree to everything on that list.


We understand, or understood, that the Board wishes the parties to narrow the issues list down as much as possible for oral hearing, and, in fact, I recall in a distribution case being ‑‑ observing the Board's disappointment, I might say, at the breadth of the issues list that we presented to you.


We do understand, however, that the parties and Board Staff, in particular, have an interest or have an obligation to the public to make sure all the bases are covered and that all the issues are raised, especially for interrogatory purposes.  And so we can understand that there is this tension between efficiency and the need to cover all of the potential issues that could conceivably be relevant to this.


This issues list is very broad.  We've agreed to it, by and large, because we hope that it will enable Board Staff and interested parties to ask interrogatories, which can be answered by interrogatory, and, therefore, remove it as a real live issue for the oral hearing.


And we would like to propose to the Board that the Board consider fixing another day, after the interrogatories have been answered, but before the technical ‑‑ or, I'm sorry, before the settlement conference - thank you, the settlement conference - to fix a day whereby we might get together again and try to come up with a more condensed, focussed issues list for the oral hearing.


A suggestion might be that you could do that at the time of the Technical Conference for which you've set aside time.  But I do believe, I hope, that with mutual co‑operation we can narrow this list down greatly for the oral hearing.  


There has to be trust here between the applicant and its customers and the Board and Staff.  My client intends to be very open‑minded about answering interrogatories and not take a narrow view of the issues.  We understand that people have to ask the questions, but we're hoping that that will be reciprocated at some point in this process with a much narrower issue list for the oral hearing of things that really do matter to people.


So that's my suggestion.


Now, to that end, one of the things we talked about at the Issues Day was the interface between the Board's recent distribution decision and this case.  The applicant's concern is that we not revisit things that have been already determined about a year ago by this Board in the distribution case.


It understands there is a difference between the distribution business and the transmission business, obviously, but there were decisions made in that case concerning methodology and approaches which apply equally to both distribution and transmission, and it was the applicant's hope that we could make it clear in the issues list that the Board does not wish to revisit those areas and that questions should not be permitted to re‑open decisions already made by the Board.


And you will see that that issue has spawned Herculean effort on the part of Board counsel and Staff to try and list, in an appendix here, the topics that were determined by the distribution panel which might have application to the transmission panel.  And you will see that at the ‑‑ there's an appendix.


MS. NOWINA:  Yes.  Can I stop for a moment and ask if everybody has a copy of that appendix that Board Staff put together?  Is that yes?


Ms. Campbell, can we mark that as an exhibit so we can refer to it, both documents, the newly drafted issues list and the appendix?


MS. CAMPBELL:  So the proposed issues list will be Exhibit A, and what I've called schedule 1 but everybody's calling an appendix will be Exhibit B.


EXHIBIT NO. A:  PROPOSED ISSUES LIST

EXHIBIT NO. B:  SCHEDULE 1

MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  Go ahead, Mr. Rogers.


MR. ROGERS:  Now, what Board Counsel has tried to do here is to excerpt all the areas in the Board's distribution decision which might have ‑ I don't want to overstate this ‑ might have application to the transmission case.


I can tell the Board and reassure everyone here that the applicant well understands that decisions made in the distribution case will apply to the transmission case only if they are on all fours.  And you'll recall from the last case there was a concern expressed by the Board, with which the applicant agrees, that we have to be very careful that decisions made in distribution are applied faithfully to the transmission case so that we don't get a double counting or a double recovery of costs on the applicant's case, or costs falling between the cracks somehow.  

The applicant has tried to apply the methodologies approved by the Board in the distribution case faithfully in this case.  We will answer questions in which we expect to demonstrate that to the parties, but we appreciate that is a very live issue in this case, but where decisions were made in distribution which apply equally to transmission, we would hope that the Board won't have to go through it all again.

     What I'm suggesting is this:  In the proposed issues list, Exhibit A, there is a preamble under the heading "Proposed issues list for Issues Day.”  Board counsel has established a preamble there in which it introduces Exhibit A, the appendix.  What I'd like to suggest is this, a very modest change to that wording to make what I've just said clear.  

What I would suggest is this, and I'll just read it as I propose it should be.  The first sentence is the same: 

"The panel in the Ontario Hydro One Networks Inc. distribution application (the ‘distribution decision’) made certain findings and observations that are relevant to this application."

I propose adding this sentence:

"This proceeding should not involve a re-examination of decisions made by the Board in that case which apply equally to the transmission business."

And then it would carry on:

"Attached as schedule 1 to the proposed issues list are the excerpts from the description decision containing ...."

I suggest we take out the word "those" and insert the word "such", "such findings and observations."

     And the reason I make that minor suggestion is that we haven't had a chance to go through the whole list to make sure it's caught everything.  We know that there's one area we suggest should be added to the list, and that is the allowance for funds used during construction found at paragraph 4.4.4 of the Board's distribution decision, where the long-term debt rate was approved for this purpose, and which I understand the applicant has done in this case.

      That's why I say "such findings."  We believe that the list is very thorough, but there may be some matters which are not on it that should be.

     With that caveat, my client agrees with the issues list as proposed, with the exception that I want to say something about the issue of the rate-setting aspect of this case.

     MS. CAMPBELL:  Before you do that, would you mind repeating the full sentence that you proposed?

     MR. ROGERS:  The sentence that I'm proposing?

     MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes.  "This proceeding should not involve a re-examination of" is as far as I got.

     MR. ROGERS:  Of decisions made by the Board in that case which apply equally to the transmission business.  The intent here is just to give the Board the tool to limit re-examination of issues which it determined a year ago which have direct application to this case.

     MS. CAMPBELL:  For clarity's sake, can I repeat what I have now captured?

     MR. ROGERS:  Yes.

     MS. CAMPBELL:  “This proceeding should not involve a re-examination of decisions made by the Board in that case which apply equally to the transmission business."

     MR. ROGERS:  Correct.

     MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes.  Thank you.

     MR. ROGERS:  And then change the word "those" to “such” in the following sentence, so that it's not deemed to be a totally inclusive list.

     MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.

     MR. ROGERS:  Can I go on now and deal with the only other area, I believe, of concern to the applicant on this issues list?  That has to do with section 7, rate design and charge determinants.

     I think the concern is 7.2, Madam Chair and Members of the Board.  The applicant's concern with this, I think I can summarize fairly quickly.  The applicant understood that this case would deal with the revenue requirement of the applicant.  It was their understanding that because of the present method of applying a system rate for transmission province-wide, that other utilities, other transmission companies, needed to be involved in that step in the process of setting the uniform rate.

      My client is concerned that this case really has not applied for the transmission rate.  It's applied for a revenue requirement, but its understanding was that the Board in a corollary proceeding involving the other three transmitters would set the uniform rate with their involvement.

      Now, my client's by far the biggest.  And it understands that, but we were just concerned, really, from the Board's standpoint, that consideration should be given as to whether notice, adequate notice, has been provided to the other transmitters and their customers if we are to examine the uniform rate in this case, and the charge determinants in this case, which will, in effect, bind those other transmitters.

      My client is content to deal with it in this case, but we wish to draw to the Board Staff's attention our concern that perhaps notice to the other transmitters should be given if it is the Board's intention to do it in this proceeding.

      Now, I hasten to say in the case of the charge determinants, which I believe is the major driver of the rate design, my client is proposing in this case, and the subsequent case, the status quo.  The charge determinants were determined by the Board in the 0044 case, I believe a few years ago, and my client has decided it believes that to be the most appropriate way to carry on, and it is proposing the status quo.

      Others, I understand, disagree with that.  My client does not say that we can't revisit this issue if it's important to people, but we just question whether it should be done in this case if it binds the other transmitters without giving them adequate notice.

     MS. NOWINA:  Just a couple of questions of clarification, Mr. Rogers.  It's probably issue 7.3 or both 7.2 and 7.3?

     MR. ROGERS:  It's a combination, I think, thank you. 

Yes, it is.

     MS. NOWINA:  All right.  And the other point, I want to be clear, Hydro One did file evidence on that status --

     MR. ROGERS:  Yes, on charge determinants set on the status quo, yes.

     MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.

     MR. ROGERS:  And I will also say that in the stakeholdering process that was undertaken, it was discussed with the stakeholders too.

     MS. NOWINA:  All right.  Thank you.

     MR. ROGERS:  So I hope the applicant's position is clear.

     MS. NOWINA:  Right.  And those are all your submissions?

     MR. ROGERS:  Yes.  Thank you.

    [The Board confers]

     MS. NOWINA:  Ms. Campbell.


SUBMISSIONS BY MS. CAMPBELL:

     MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.  The reason that there are two stars beside 7.3, for those who have noticed there are two stars beside 7.3, is because that was Board's Staff's understanding of which issues was, in fact, live.  

Mr. Rogers and myself and Ms. Lea had a discussion concerning the issue of notice in a very fulsome way, so this has been discussed between us previously.

      The concern expressed by Hydro One is a proper one, and that is whether or not sufficient notice has been given to all of the transmitters who will be affected by this, plus the major customers of those transmitters and the LDCs who will be affected.

      A number of the LDCs have come forward and are active participants; i.e., intervenors in this proceeding.  GLP is also an intervenor, and all of the transmitters, even the smallest of them, have been provided with notice of the application.

      What is of concern to Board Staff would be that all of those who are interested and affected by the issue of charge determinants be made aware that the issue is very much alive in this hearing and that their participation on that would be required here if, in fact, the panel is of the view that it should be heard in this hearing.  And the reason that the Board staff believes it should be heard in this hearing, quite simply, is matters of efficiency; secondly, Hydro One is the single biggest transmitter by, I believe, 96 percent, in the province.  The parties are already assembled to deal with significant issues, all of which bear upon, in some fashion, the revenue requirement for Hydro One and the issue of charge determinants, and it makes sense, from a practical point of view, to have all of the other transmitters be given notice of this and have the ability to participate, along with, of course, any of the major customers and LDCs who will be affected.


And to that end, Board Staff believes that the charge determinants issue should remain on the issues list, should be dealt with here; however, Hydro One should be directed to give additional notice of the specific nature of the issue with regard to charge determinants to those individuals.


Notice has already been given of the application in 93 different publications, I believe.  I counted quickly this morning.  It's at least 90.  The letter of direction that went out not only published in 93 newspapers, but they're in both official languages in the various areas of the province.


What would be required from Hydro One, I think, would be one more type of notice that need not be province‑wide in the sense that publishing once more in those newspapers saying, Oh, and by the way, we're going to focus on charge determinants, is not going to make a great deal of difference to that many people, but it will to those individual large customers, transmitters and LDCs.  So directed notice in the form of, for example, a letter specifically addressed to those individuals and directed to those persons in authority who will make the decision on whether to participate would, in fact, be an appropriate and timely and efficient and cost‑effective.


MS. NOWINA:  Ms. Campbell, if that resulted in interventions that we don't now have, a new set of intervenors, would that affect the schedule of the proceeding? 


MS. CAMPBELL:  Well, the intervenors would come in accepting the record as it exists, and it may well be that as the major participants -- many of the major participants are already in the room, the effect on the time line may be minimal, but I can't honestly say that to you until I know who it is and what they intend to do.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.


MR. ROGERS:  Can I just respond to that?


MS. NOWINA:  Yes.


MR. ROGERS:  The applicant has already advertised in every daily in Ontario --


MS. NOWINA:  Yes.


MR. ROGERS:  -- for its case.  And I looked this morning at the notice, which was mandated by the Board, and I'm fairly comfortable that the customers of Hydro One are aware or ought to be aware that charge determinants could be considered in this case.


My concern is with the other transmitters and their customers.  And while I know my client wants to be co-operative, I'm not certain that it ought to be the one that has the obligation of notifying customers of other transmitters.  It's those transmitters that should be doing that, I would suggest.


Again, we want to co‑operate here, but it's their customers that we're concerned about.  And if the status quo that is being proposed by Hydro One is accepted by the Board, there won't be any major impact on anybody; but if it's changed, there conceivably could be.


MR. SOMMERVILLE:  Are all charge determinants at issue?


MR. ROGERS:  You'll have to ask the intervenors that.  I don't know just ‑‑ I don't know.


MR. SOMMERVILLE:  The answer is yes?


MS. LEA:  I believe there's a network charge determinant, sir.


MR. SOMMERVILLE:  That's my question.  So that may have an impact on the further notice that's required.  That would, I guess, entail notice to -- specific notice to LDCs with respect to the specific issue involved and the so‑called end‑use transmission customers.


MR. ROGERS:  Yes.


MR. SOMMERVILLE:  That would be the category of customer that would be affected by the network charge determinant issue; is that correct?


MR. ROGERS:  I believe you're correct.


MR. SOMMERVILLE:  So if we were to consider directing a further notice, that would provide the boundary of that.  Is there agreement among the parties on that score?


MR. ROGERS:  I'm instructed -- and my engineering is very weak, but I'm instructed that everyone is impacted by the network charge to some extent.  So it has some impact on everyone.


MR. SOMMERVILLE:  I guess a change in allocation, I guess, has an impact on others.  I guess -- I mean, there's some degree, I suppose, of presumption that people are given notice, to some extent, that these things can be put in play.  But where it's a very specific implication, a very specific impact, that may be different.


MR. ROGERS:  I don't know what the intervenors' position is.  I know the stakeholders and ‑‑ and I want to be careful here, to be fair, but there was, I think, general agreement ‑‑ or many intervenors agreed with the status quo, but I think there's one or two - Mr. Rodger may wish to speak to this - who don't agree.


MS. NOWINA:  We'll get submissions from the intervenors, and they can talk to whatever topics they want to talk to.  

Back to Ms. Campbell.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Rather than have me paraphrase what Ms. Lea, the great brain on transmission --


MS. LEA:  Oh, God.


MS. CAMPBELL:  -- who is whispering to me, to make sure everybody in the room understands, rather than having me mumble away and have her pass me more notes and me thinking, Oh, my God, I'm going to let Ms. Lea make those comments, because I'd rather have it right through her mouth.


SUBMISSIONS BY MS. LEA:


MS. LEA:  That's a pretty high standard, Ms. Campbell.  I don't presume to get anything right.  Also, have you noticed that being staff here, it's almost impossible for me?  I'm jumping up and down.


The people who are affected by the network charge determinant are, of course, all the customers in the province, but the difficulty is that for some of those customers, they really have no control over what happens.  The network charge determinant is set at the gate of the LDC, and that is passed through to the LDC's customers in that fashion.


So the LDCs themselves do not gain or lose, depending on the way the charge determinant is set.  They recover those costs from their customers.


Because this notice has been so broad, Board Staff don't consider it necessary to re-notify every customer in the province.  There's very little that LDC distribution normal households can do about charge determinants if it is determined at the gate, to a certain extent.


So we were thinking that the best thing to do would be to re-notify, if I can put it that way, the other transmitters to make sure that they understand that their own network charge determinant will be determined in this hearing.


I think that that's the intention here.  If we determine it for Hydro One, it has traditionally been applied throughout the province.  We are contemplating having a proceeding subsequent to this that would actually set the rate.  


So I don't think we have a jurisdictional issue here about having the other transmitters here before us as applicants or as brought in by the Board.  We would have a subsequent proceeding, as we did with GLP.


But the charge determinant that is determined is the one that applies to all transmitters.  So we think we need to re-notify those transmitters about the fact that that may be set in this case.


As Mr. Rogers points out, the customers, direct transmission customers of those transmitters, may well be affected.  Some of them are AMPCO members, and I understand it's AMPCO that's bringing forward a propose to change it.  So those customers that are AMPCO members, presumably they're represented here.  And Mr. Thiessen has provided me with a list, I think, of transmission customers.  It's about 12 customers of GLP.  


There is Canadian Niagara Power, a few industrial customers, okay, and two direct purchasers; First Nations Energy -- Five Nations Energy, pardon me.  The Town names, are they actual distribution customers?  

[Conferring with Staff]


MS. LEA:  And there are the distribution utilities that flow from Five Nations Energy, Attawapiscat - I'll spell that for you later, reporter - Port Albany, and Kasheschewan.  So it's those customers, I think, that would see the biggest impact, and it's those customers that we agree be Mr. Rogers should probably be re-notified.


Just to be safe, I don't want you to get the feeling that Board Staff believes that notice has been inadequate.  What we're proposing is a cautionary measure.  Notice has been given.  This is going above and beyond to make sure something else doesn't happen.


I think what Board Staff would like to hear from other parties about is whether the LDCs themselves need to be re-notified.  The EDA, I don't think, is an intervenor here?  No.  Several of the LDCs are.  Whether they're taking an active role in the case, I don't know.


And it's a question that we'd like to hear from the applicant and others as to whether the individual LDCs, whether there be any point in re-notifying them, or, because they have been notified, that's all we need to do.


So certainly Board Staff believes that the other transmitters and their customers, particularly those that aren't members of AMPCO, should be re-notified.


MR. ROGERS:  I can answer for the applicant, if that  -- I think the applicant feels that the notice given for its case has been adequate.


MS. LEA:  Mm‑hm.


MR. ROGERS:  You've correctly identified the concern that my client has.  It doesn't even know who those customers are, necessarily.


MS. LEA:  Yes.


MR. ROGERS:  But that's exactly our concern.  It's those transmitters and their customers.


MS. LEA:  I think, Mr. Rogers, that we can work out a practical way to get this notice to them, whether it's by ordering your client to do it or the Board to undertake it,

I don't know, but we'll work that out.

     MR. ROGERS:  I agree.  I also agree a belt and suspenders is always a good idea in these cases.

     MS. LEA:  You are not of the view that the LDCs need to be re-notified at this time?

     MR. ROGERS:  No.  I think, if anything, the customers of my client have received those.

     MS. LEA:  Yes, perfect.  Thank you.

     MS. NOWINA:  Ms. Campbell, submissions on any other issues?  Do you have submissions other than on this topic?


SUBMISSIONS BY MS. CAMPBELL:

     MS. CAMPBELL:  The other submission, actually, would have to do with, there are two additional matters:  One is, we've talked about Exhibit B, which is schedule 1.  Mr. Rogers has indicated that he'd like a little something added to it, and I was sure I’d put AFUDC in there.  However, it didn't. That's what I call the ... whatever that is.

     MS. LEA:  AFUDC.

     MS. CAMPBELL:  AFUDC.  Well, in a sector that is renowned for its short forms, I'm creating my own.  So with regard to schedule 1, I will discuss with Mr. Rogers.  I'll go back; I'll insert that.  And the issue, really, for the panel to decide is whether or not you accept the amendment proposed by Mr. Rogers.  I certainly have no difficulty with it, because I think everyone in the room understands the mischief that he's trying to prevent, and no one wants this to be any longer.

     MS. LEA:  Present or prevent?

     MS. CAMPBELL:  Prevent.  I would never look at Mr. Rogers and think he is anything but a joy.

      The issue for you is whether you accept in the notice of hearing Exhibit A, the amendment to the preamble.  I certainly do - I have no difficulty with the language he has proposed - And whether you accept the utility of the schedule 1 with any additions that Mr. Rogers or perhaps any of the other intervenors or participants might feel is necessary.

      Aside from the part that Mr. Rogers has signalled, I don't believe there's anything else that was of significance, any finding or observation that has not been reproduced.  But I will undertake, of course, to make sure that it is as complete as possible, and I would ask that you turn your mind towards whether or not you accept the use of schedule 1 and its use at the hearing and its utility as a result.

      The second part I have to talk to has to do with time lines, and that has to do with the fact that in putting together the time line that forms part of Procedural

Order No. 1, that the time line that was put together did not reflect the March break, which takes up, I believe, the week of March 12th, and the additional time needed for an expert that's been retained by one of the intervenors.  

We are working on a time line.  And rather than occupy precious time in this room discussing the pros and cons of one day over another, what I suggest we do is that we will work on this outside of this hearing room, come to some decision after circulating it with all of the intervenors and discussing it with everyone, and then provide it to the panel for your review.  If acceptable to you, you can signal your acceptance in writing, and if there are any issues, we'll deal with them in writing or - and I'd hate to think this would be necessary, but of course always possible - by bringing everybody together in a room to talk.

     MS. NOWINA:  Highly unlikely.

     MS. CAMPBELL:  I hope.  Those are the comments that I have.

     MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  I'm not going to try to divide intervenors into groups that support Hydro One's submissions and those that don't, because I don't think that these are black-and-white issues.  So certainly we will take the submissions by intervenors, whoever likes to volunteer to go first. 

Mr. Rodger, I see you moving.

SUBMISSIONS BY MR. RODGER:

     MR. RODGER:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

     With respect to the charge determinant question, AMPCO supports the submissions of both Hydro One and Board Staff.  It is certainly AMPCO's expectation that these issues around charge determinants would be included at this proceeding.  

Mr. Rogers referenced the stakeholder process.  You may have seen that earlier in the week I circulated to all parties and Board Staff various stakeholder meeting documents and presentations.  I won't take you through them other than just to refer to one.

     On May 3rd and 4th of 2006, there was an overview given by Hydro One on the transmission rate application, and the exhibit list.  On page 3, it talks about transmission rate application scope and structure, and the first bullet says:  

"Will include all elements of revenue requirement, cost allocation, and rate design."

     Certainly AMPCO's expectation is that this is the forum through which we could test the status quo and put forward an alternate approach to particularly network charge determinants, and as we've advised parties, it's AMPCO's intention to bring a witness panel on this issue.

      I think part of the -- I wouldn't say “confusion,” but part of the issue here is the two-step process in establishing rates that is unfolding; that there are no rates coming out of this immediate hearing, and I think that's been part of the issue.  So we agree with the earlier comments that, really, this is a notice question.

      We think notice is adequate, but if the safe approach wants to be pursued, that's fine with AMPCO.  We don't think it needs to be done.  That's our views on charge determinants.

      With respect to Mr. Rogers' other submission on what had been decided on the distribution case of Hydro One, we certainly appreciate and understand the concern that Hydro One would have of not trying to recreate the wheel in this proceeding.  However, we do think that some caution has to be exercised with some of the excerpts contained in Exhibit B.  

I'll give you a couple of examples, load forecasting methodology and forecast of CDM.

     If you look at the other issues in issue 7, 7.1, for example, is "Is the load forecasting methodology appropriate and have the impact of conservation and demand management initiatives been suitably reflected?”  

We're now not sure how that issue now fits in with Exhibit B.  For example, if we were to persuade the Board that a change in the network charge determinant is warranted at this time, it seems to AMPCO that that could, in fact, affect the load forecasting side.

      We're not sure how, then, we pursue issue 7.1 in the context of this paragraph that references distribution.  So we are just concerned about inconsistencies if we have this preamble on these type of issues now, how much room we have to move with what we can are legitimate issues like charge determinants and how it could impact on load forecasting.

     MS. NOWINA:  Mr. Rodger, let's stop and discuss that for a moment, because I want to make sure we're all clear.

      As I understand, Ms. Campbell took all the decisions, pretty well, from a distribution case, and put it in this document.  Some of those, as Mr. Rogers said, were clearly intended to carry forward to the transmission case and were applicable and some are not.  Some are clearly – I mean, distribution and transmission do these things differently.

     MR. RODGER:  Yes.

     MS. NOWINA:  Attaching this as an appendix, I don't believe from the Board's point of view that there's any intention, certainly with many of these, that that means that these topics are not the legitimate issues list of this transmission case.

     MR. RODGER:  Almost reading into this, then, the appendix, in the extent to which it’s restricted to a distribution issue, wouldn't be revisited, but certainly the topic could be pursued in the context of the issues you do approve for this hearing.

     MS. NOWINA:  That's how I would do it.

     MR. ROGERS:  That’s very helpful.  Could I just add, providing there's a distinction, that's the point.

     MS. NOWINA:  Exactly.

     MR. RODGERS:  And that's why the wording I suggested to counsel.  We do understand that transmission is different from distribution, and you can't just apply everything in the distribution case holus bolus, but many of them you can.

     MR. RODGER:  That's fine with AMPCO.  

Those are my submissions, Madam Chair.

     MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Rodger.  

Mr. DeVellis.

SUBMISSIONS BY MR. DeVELLIS

     MR. DeVELLIS:  Thank you, Madam Chair.

     I'll speak to the first issue raised by Mr. Rogers first, and that is the issue of the intervenors narrowing the issues on the issues list prior to the settlement conference.

      I think, with respect, Mr. Rogers' concern is unfounded.  I never have seen a situation where intervenors have tried to make hay at a settlement conference on issues that have no merit or that the company's position is correct.

     And so -- it seems what Mr. Rogers is trying to do is to get intervenors to, in fact, negotiate against themselves before the settlement conference even starts.  In our view, that is inappropriate.  There is a procedure for a settlement conference, and in our view, that's where the issues should be addressed and discussed fully.

      Regarding the preamble, there is no question that the distribution decision, certain elements of it, have an impact on this proceeding, and we don't have any intention of revisiting issues that clearly have already been decided in a distribution decision.  And so we don't believe it's necessary to have a preamble at all; however, we believe the way that Board Staff has set it out, as a matter of information purposes only, is fine and we don't have a problem with that.


We don't agree with the added wording suggested by Mr. Rogers, and the reason is that it seems to us what he's trying to do is transform Board Staff's preamble, which is for information purposes only, and create a sort of onus on intervenors to demonstrate that issues are not ‑‑ have not already been decided in a distribution case, or to leave it open‑ended for the company to argue that, you know, any issue that, you know, they may read into the distribution case has already been decided.  And so we prefer the wording as it is for those reasons. 


And on the issues of 7.2 and 7.3, we don't have a particular concern that it's heard necessarily in this proceeding, although our concern is that it not be put off indefinitely.  So we would tend to agree with Board Staff's position, as well.  

Those are my submissions.  Thank you.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. DeVellis.  

Mr. Rodger, did you want to make a submission on the ‑‑ having a day to narrow the issues before the settlement conference?


MR. RODGER:  I think we'd be supportive of that.  I think it's in everybody's interests if we can work through issues to narrow the oral hearing to the really pertinent matters.  So we would certainly work towards that, as well, Madam Chair.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  

Mr. Warren?


SUBMISSIONS BY MR. WARREN:

MR. WARREN:  Madam Chair, on the ‑‑ I don't know that you need to hear from me or care to hear from me on all of the laundry list of issues, but the only one that we wanted to speak to - and it's just preliminary to the issue of scheduling which Ms. Campbell has raised, and we have no problem with the solution - is the reason we were concerned about it is -- and it's really something, I guess --


MS. NOWINA:  I'm sorry, your mike's off.  Ms. Girvan, I think you just turned it off.


MR. WARREN:  The cluster of issues around Issue IV make this, in effect, a full cost-of-capital case, as opposed to the way, for example, the issue has been dealt with in some of the gas cases recently, where we've come at it only in bits and pieces.


We were one of the - or perhaps the party - that asked for an extension of time.  We have retained an expert on this.  And looking at the expert's other obligations, we were concerned that if it is a full cost-of-capital case, then it's going to take a not inconsiderable amount of time for the expert to prepare a response to what we've seen in the evidence.  

So if Mr. Rogers could just confirm what is perhaps known to everyone in the room but me, that this is in fact a full cost-of-capital consideration in this case, that will inform our approach as to the scheduling.


With respect to the other matters, Madam Chair, we agree that a narrowing of the issues is appropriate, and we have no problem with Mr. Rogers' suggested preamble.  

Thank you.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  

Mr. Rogers, do you want to respond to that?


MR. ROGERS:  Yes.  My client believes that it is appropriate to have a cost-of-capital assessment in this case for its transmission business.  It intends to proceed with its application.  And it's agreeable to a relaxation of the time lines to allow Mr. Warren's witness to prepare a rebuttal, if he thinks that appropriate, provided that the timing isn't compressed at the other end so that my client doesn't have time to do what it has to do.  

Thank you.


MS. NOWINA:  Right.  Thank you.  

Who wishes to go next?  Mr. Stephenson?


SUBMISSIONS BY MR. STEPHENSON:

MR. STEPHENSON:  The only point I would make is that I certainly do support the proposed additional notice being given.  I think that to the extent there is any doubt whatsoever that there is the potential for a deficiency of notice - and I'm not saying there is, but to the extent there is a potential - it could be calamitous, in the sense of setting aside an enormous amount of work that gets done.  So I think that is a modest and useful investment.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  

Who else wishes to make a submission?  Mr. Buonaguro?


SUBMISSIONS BY MR. BUONAGURO:

MR. BUONAGURO:  Thank you.


With respect to scoping the issues in some prior form, I think what normally has happened in the last few hearings I've been in is that we have had the ADR as the whole scoping session, so that before the hearing, the mediator takes us through the issues list to see with which ones will actually go to the hearing, and it's at that point that it's appropriate to narrow the issues.  I don't see why that wouldn't happen here, in that there's nothing particularly new or unique about this particular hearing. 


So in terms of when that should happen, I think it should happen at the ADR, like it does now.


With respect to the preamble, I think the critical points about the preamble is that the distribution application is relevant, which the first sentence sets out, and the distribution decision is not binding, which the last sentence points out.  And in between those, there's room to argue.  If a party can make a distinction between the transmission and the distribution businesses, they'll make that distinction.


My consultant, Mr. Harper, has been listening, I think by Internet, and he points out, for example, the AFUDC issue which was specifically raised.  

He points out, for example, that the Board issued a November 28th paper indicating how all distributors will calculate AFUDC.  So, for example, that would be new information that may impact how the distribution decision would apply and whether it's relevant to the transmission case.


So I think that the critical point is the first sentence and the second sentence, it is relevant but not binding, and I think we can work within that.


With respect to where to hear charge determinants, we're indifferent.  We're happy to hear it here.  

And those are my submissions.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Buonaguro.  

Anyone else wish to make a submission?


All right, thank you.


MR. RODGER:  Could I just respond to that briefly?


MS. NOWINA:  Yes, Mr. Rogers.


MR. ROGERS:  And this has to do with timing of my suggestion for a focussed issues list.  The reason that I ask that it be done prior to the settlement conference is twofold:  

First, the company has to have witnesses briefed and prepared to testify before this Board, and it's a time‑consuming process.  The later we leave it, the more unnecessary work these people are doing preparing for issues which are never going to be examined in the hearing.  And that's why I asked that the Board move it up in the process, so that we can release a lot of these people to run this utility.


And the second point, made by one of my friends, about the settlement conference, is this:  That the settlement conference, if it's a meaningful settlement conference, doesn't take issues that people don't really care about and trade them for some concession.  A settlement conference should be a good‑faith effort on the part of the parties to deal with issues that people really care about and try to work out a reasonable compromise which serves the interests of all of us.  


It shouldn't be a time when people come and say, We've got these six issues we don't really care about; we'll take them off the issues list, applicant, if you give us $5 million.  That's not appropriate.


So I ask the Board to consider setting this process, of focussing the issues, before the settlement conference.  At the Technical Conference would be a good time to do it, or sometime early in the proceeding, so that I can release some of these witnesses.


Thank you.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  


Thank you, everyone.


What we will do is take a 15‑minute break while the Panel determines whether or not it can give you an oral decision today.  If we can give you an oral decision, we'll come back and tell you we're going to take a longer break in order to craft that decision.  If not, we'll come back and tell you that the process for today is adjourned.  Thanks very much. 

‑‑‑ Recess taken at 10:23 a.m.

     --- On resuming at 10:41 a.m.

DECISION:

MS. NOWINA:  I'll start again, for the record.  We have reached our decision now, and then we'll be free for the rest of the day.

Regarding the preamble, we have reworded the preamble, and I will read it into the transcript:

"The panel in the Hydro One Networks

Inc. distribution application (the ‘distribution decision’) made certain findings and observations that may be relevant to this application.  

Attached as schedule 1 to the proposed issues list are excerpts from the distribution decision containing some such findings and observations.  The schedule is for informational purposes only.  It is not intended that this proceeding involve a re-examination of decisions made by the Board in the distribution case which are fully applicable to the transmission business."

Regarding issues 7.2 and 7.3, we agree that those will remain on the issues list, and we ask that Board Staff work with the other transmitters, that they both have notice themselves and provide notice to their customers.

      Regarding having another day in order to narrow the issues list, while we appreciate everyone's effort to narrow the issues list, the Panel believes that the current practice of doing this is in the settlement process and that this is appropriate.  We don't see this case as to be so exceptional to warrant an unusual process to deal with the issues list.

      I believe those are all the matters that were of question.  Are there any questions from anyone?

     Thank you very much.  We'll see you in a few months. 

With that, we are adjourned.  


--- Whereupon the hearing is adjourned at 10:43 a.m.



















PAGE  

